
AMENDED - COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 
August 13, 2013 
Earl McGovern Board Room, 6:30 P.M. 
 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a meeting of the Community Development Authority will be held in 
the EMG Board Room at the Village Hall of the Village of Brown Deer, 4800 West Green Brook Drive, 
Brown Deer, Wisconsin at the above noted time and date, at which the following items of business will be 
discussed and possibly acted upon: 
 
I. Roll Call 

 
II. Persons Desiring to be Heard 
 
III. Consideration of Minutes:   June 13, 2013 Meeting 
 
IV. Report of Staff 
 
V. Recess into Closed Session pursuant to §19.85 (1)(e) Wisconsin Statutes for the following reasons: 
 

(e) Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, 
or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons 
require a closed session.  

 
1. JFS Housing Inc., Bradley Crossing Phase Two, TID Redevelopment 

Agreement  
 
2. Option to Purchase - 8806 N. Deerwood Drive 

 
VI. Reconvene into Open Session for Possible Action on Closed Session Deliberations 
 
VII. New Business 
 

A) Consideration of a TID Redevelopment Agreement with  JFS Housing Inc., Bradley 
Crossing Phase Two 
 

B) Consideration of Option to Purchase – 8806 N. Deerwood Drive 
 
VIII. Adjournment 
 
 

  
           Jill Kenda-Lubetski, Village Clerk 

August 12, 2013 
 
 

PERSONS REQUIRING SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS FOR ATTENDANCE AT THE MEETING SHOULD 
CONTACT THE VILLAGE CLERK AT LEAST ONE BUSINESS DAY PRIOR TO THE MEETING. 



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
JUNE 13, 2013 MEETING MINUTES 

HELD AT THE BROWN DEER VILLAGE HALL 
4800 WEST GREEN BROOK DRIVE 

  
The meeting was called to order by President Krueger at 6:35 P.M. 
 
I. Roll Call 

Present:  Village President Carl Krueger, Trustee Tim Schilz, Ron Kundinger, Ted Wagner, John Coons, 
Scott Fleming 

 
Also Present: Michael Hall, Village Manager; Nate Piotrowski, Community Development Director; John Fuchs, 

Village Attorney; Alan Marcuvitz, Community Development Authority Counsel 
 
Excused:  Claude Williams Jr. 
 
II. Persons Desiring to be Heard 

Attorney Fuchs stated that General Capital Group requested that the Sixth Substitute TID Redevelopment Agreement 
be withdrawn from consideration by the Community Development Authority.  He added that it was unclear as to the 
exact reason for this request but indicated that it could mean a change to the desired language of the agreement or a 
larger change to the project. He further suggested that the Community Development Authority immediately take up 
the new business item regarding this proposal and he recommended an indefinite layover. It was consensus of the 
committee to take up the “New Business VII. A) Consideration of the Cook/Gen Cap Brown Deer LLC (Beaver 
Creek) Sixth Substitute TID Redevelopment Agreement”. 

It was moved by Trustee Schilz and seconded by Mr. Fleming to indefinitely layover the request. The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
President Krueger then opened the floor for additional persons desiring to be heard. 
 
Don Uebelacker, 6195 W. Plaza Circle, reiterated his opposition to the Beaver Creek proposal and stated that the 
Village has too many rental units. He also shared statistics from other North Shore communities. He asked for 
clarification as to the dollar amount General Capital was requesting from the Village and what the current zoning 
status was for the property. Attorney Fuchs explained that the financials could not be disclosed publicly because the 
Community Development Authority had not yet reviewed them.  He added that Staff was aware of the dollar amount, 
but only because they needed to provide the information ahead of the meeting to the committee members. In terms of 
the zoning he added that the original agreement to build condominiums was back in full force and effect since the 
suspension resolution expired. 
 
Jean Clougherty, 6674 W. Donges Lane, stated her opposition to the Beaver Creek project and indicated that she felt 
it would drive down other area rental prices. 
 
James Krueger, 5975 W. Green Brook Drive, questioned why the Village allowed General Capital the opportunity to 
apply and remove agenda items so liberally.  President Krueger replied that the Village needed to allow the developer 
due process. 
 
Mike Christopulos, 8515 N. 59th Street, stated that he was frustrated by General Capital’s “stalling tactics”. 
 
Lloyd Lamere, 5277 W. Fairy Chasm, stated that he was opposed to the Beaver Creek apartment proposal and felt that 
it was a high risk project. 
 
Janet Crosby, 6271 W. Plaza Circle, indicated that she was opposed to any financial assistance for the Beaver Creek 
project. 
 
Cynthia Brown, 9047 W. Silverbrook Lane, suggested that this was a bailout for the developer and indicated that she 
was opposed to any financial assistance for the Beaver Creek project. 
 



Community Development Authority                                                                    June 19, 2013 
       Page 2 

 
John Denegy, 8487 N. 66th Street, indicated that he was opposed to any financial assistance for the Beaver Creek 
project. 
 
Auggie Zanowski, 8614 N. 56th Street, indicated that he was opposed to any financial assistance for the Beaver Creek 
project. 
 
Margaret Lilly, 5701 W. Green Brook Drive, asked how many people disapproved of the project by a show of hands.  
All hands in the room were raised in disapproval. 
 
Kevin Wisth, 5675 W. Brown Deer Road, stated that more rental units would be detrimental to the Village.  He asked 
for a show of hands of all property owners in the room.  All hands were raised. 
 
Ellen Jogwer, 8715 N. Kildeer Court, stated that she felt the developer already received enough financial assistance 
from the State of Wisconsin and Milwaukee County that they did not need any more from the Village. 
 
Karen Tuskiewicz, 5893 W. Green Brook Drive, stated she was opposed to the project due to the extra traffic it would 
generate. 
 
Deno Teat, 5950 W. Glenbrook Road, indicated that he was opposed to any financial assistance for the Beaver Creek 
project. 
 
Kevin Klimek, 9262 N. Bethanne Drive, indicated that he was opposed to any financial assistance for the Beaver 
Creek project. 
 
Dawn Gonzalez, 6323 W. Pierner Place, asked if members of the CDA were also residents. President Krueger 
responded that they were all residents and the citizen members were volunteers. 
 
Susan Fritchi, 6159 W. Plaza Circle, presented the committee with a petition signed by 24 neighbors who opposed 
changing the zoning at Beaver Creek from owner occupied condominiums to rental apartments. She also asked for the 
Village to place the issue on a community wide referendum. 
 
Monica Baehren, 3656 W. Pelican Lane, stated that she was opposed to financial assistance for the Beaver Creek 
project. 
 
Julie Harris, 9006 N. Maura Lane, stated that she is concerned about the negative perception that this proposal is 
creating within and outside of Brown Deer.  She asked how the public will know when the project is no longer being 
pursued. Attorney Fuchs explained the application process, the public involvement component and added that the 
developer had a right to continue to pursue development options on the site until a build out occurs.  However, he 
noted that applicants tend to limit their efforts due to increased cost and time. 
 
Ron Thurgood, 9042 N. Silverbrook asked how much money was requested from the Village by General Capital 
Group. Attorney Fuchs reiterated that this could not yet be disclosed. 
 
Mr. Denegy, stated that the proposed money for this project should be reinvested in foreclosed properties throughout 
the Village. 
 
Fred Henry, 9150 N. Maura Lane, stated that he was opposed to financial assistance for the Beaver Creek project and 
that he would remain opposed for however long it took to defeat the project. 
 
Mr. Wisth asked that a decision be made tonight on financial support. President Krueger replied that this was not 
possible. 
 
Mr. Lamere asked how the Village will handle future communication about the application process for Beaver Creek. 
Attorney Fuchs and Mr. Piotrowski elaborated on public notification efforts. 



Community Development Authority                                                                    June 19, 2013 
       Page 3 

 
Mr. Kundinger asked that Village Staff relay the Community Development Authority’s displeasure with the late 
switch to the agenda. Mr. Fleming seconded the request. 
 
III. Consideration of Minutes: May 15, 2013 CDA Meeting 

It was moved by Mr. Fleming and seconded by Mr. Coons to approve the minutes from the May 15, 2013 meeting. 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
IV.  Report of Staff 
 
None 
 
V. Recess into Closed Session pursuant to §19.85 (1)(e) Wisconsin Statutes for the following reasons: 

(e) Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or 
conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed 
session. 

1.    Deerwood Offices, LLC. Substitute TID Redevelopment Agreement 

It was moved by Trustee Schilz and seconded by Mr. Kundinger to recess into closed session at 7:44 p.m. The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
VI. Reconvene into Open Session for Possible Action on Closed Session Deliberations 

It was moved by Mr. Fleming and seconded by Mr. Wagner to reconvene into open session at 8:15 p.m. The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
VII. New Business 

B) Consideration of the Deerwood Offices, LLC. Substitute TID Redevelopment Agreement 
 
Mr. Marcuvitz explained the substitute agreement and the tragic plane crash that caused issues for the original 
development group. He also introduced Attorney Chris Jaekels as the Deerwood Offices, LLC counsel. Mr. Jaekels 
introduced Scott McBride and Mr. and Mrs. Gallion who are three of the new principals in the revised ownership 
group. 
 
Mr. Kundinger asked the group how they intended to utilize the $300,000 financial contribution from the Village. Mr. 
McBride replied that it would be used to settle issues with the estate of the previous partners who are unwilling to 
assist the new group.  
 
Mr. Fleming asked what was different about the ownership group now and why would it be successful. Mr. McBride 
replied that the businesses are doing well, they have leases in place that will more than cover the cost of the mortgage 
payment and expenses and that their bank is showing faith in the financials of the business. Attorney Fuchs asked for 
the financial information that was shared with the bank to be confidentially share with Village counsel. The principals 
agreed to this. 
 
President Krueger asked for life insurance policies to be in place for the principals to insure that the LLC was covered 
in case of further catastrophic events. Mr. Jaekels indicated that this would be addressed. 
 
Mr. Fleming asked if the principals were providing any personal money. Mrs. Galion replied that they were 
reinvesting their portion of the estate payout. Mr. McBride replied that he and Wade have already invested all of their 
personal funds and cannot extend themselves further. 
 
Attorney Fuchs asked if attorney Jaekels would continue to represent the group. Mr. Jaekels replied that he would 
continue representing the group as long as necessary. 
 



Community Development Authority                                                                    June 19, 2013 
       Page 4 

 
It was moved by Mr. Fleming and seconded by Mr. Kundinger to recommend to the Village Board the approval of the 
Deerwood Offices, LLC. Substitute TID Redevelopment Agreement, subject to review of the financial information of 
the ownership group by Village counsel. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
VIII.     Adjournment 

It was moved by Mr. Fleming and seconded by Mr. Kundinger to adjourn at 8:30 p.m. The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 

  
Nate Piotrowski, Community Development Director 


	Aug13 2013 agd
	June13

